# MINUTES OF THE RECONVENED CABINET MEETING HELD ON 7 MARCH 2022 AT 10.30 AM IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, WOODHATCH PLACE, 11 COCKSHOT HILL, REIGATE, SURREY,RH2 8EF.

These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Cabinet at its next meeting.

### Members:

(\* present)

- \*Tim Oliver (Chairman)
- \*Natalie Bramhall
- \*Clare Curran
- \*Matt Furniss
- \*Mark Nuti
- \*Denise Turner-Stewart
- \*Sinead Mooney

Marisa Heath (attended the meeting remotely)

- \*Becky Rush
- \*Kevin Deanus

## **Deputy Cabinet Members:**

Maureen Attewell

\*Rebecca Paul

Steve Bax (attended the meeting remotely)

\*Jordan Beech

### Members in attendance:

Will Forster, Local Member for Woking South

# PART ONE IN PUBLIC

The Leader explained that this meeting had been reconvened from the 22 February 2022 Cabinet meeting. One item regarding the DfE Safety Valve would be considered in private. The meeting would not be webcast.

### 46/22 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC [Item 1]

**RESOLVED:** That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information under the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

### 47/22 DEPARTMENT FOR EDUCATION SAFETY VALVE AGREEMENT [Item 2]

The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Education and Learning who explained that significant deficits on local authorities high needs block had become a national issue in recent years, with substantial deficits occurring which impacted on long term financial sustainability. Safety valve agreements had been introduced for authorities with the largest deficits to receive additional funding on the commitment to bring their in-year DSG (dedicated schools grant) into balance.

Surrey was approached in December 2021 to discuss an agreement. The Council submitted its final proposal on the 22nd of February 2022 and following further meetings and clarification in March, the Council received a first draft of a proposed safety valve agreement from the DfE. The Leader welcomed the report and thanked the Cabinet Member and officers for undertaking robust conversations with the DfE. He added that this was a very important step forward in progressing SEND transformation plans over the next five years.

### **RESOLVED:**

- 1. That Cabinet approve the proposed Safety Valve Agreement, including the proposed contribution of [See Exempt Minute E-07-22] from the General Fund reserve provided for in the Council's budget and other transfers [See Exempt Minute E-07-22]
- That Cabinet delegate final agreement and the signing of the Safety Valve Agreement to the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive and S151 Officer and the Executive Director for Children, Families and Lifelong Learning in consultation with the Leader of the Council.

#### **Reasons for Decisions:**

The Department for Education (DfE) has invited Surrey County Council to participate in its Safety Valve intervention programme, which seeks to develop proposals with targeted local authorities to address historic deficits within the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) High Needs Block (HNB) and reach an in-year balance to ensure ongoing sustainability.

A recommendation has been made for Cabinet to approve the proposed Safety Valve Agreement because the assessment (based on net present value) is that the proposals are deliverable and the financial analysis indicates that over both the MTFS and 20-year timelines, the financial benefits of the Safety Valve proposed financial contributions is greater than not securing the proposed Safety Valve agreement.

A recommendation has been made for Cabinet to delegate authority for final approval and to sign the proposed Safety Valve Agreement to the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive and S151 Officer and the Executive Director for Children, Families and Lifelong Learning in consultation with the leader of the Council so that this can be done within the timescales set out by DfE.

(The decisions on this item can be called-in by the Children, Families, Lifelong Learning & Culture Select Committee)

| Learning & Culture Select Committee) |          |  |
|--------------------------------------|----------|--|
| Meeting closed at 10:39              |          |  |
|                                      | Chairman |  |
|                                      |          |  |